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: . . .
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE comussron, 0 .6 A e D
| Plamtlff,
Case No
N . v. i
AMERICAN ENTERPRISES, INC., | CIV s o FQ
ROBERT YEAGER, and . - | A a8 Rl Y
DONNA YEAGER, et. al., o | O "
| Defenﬂantss MACJCT RATE JULGE
) O D i3 ul- (a i J.“l

- JUDGMENT OF PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND OTHER RELIEF
AS TO DEFENDANTS ROBERT YEAGER AND DONNA YEAGER

The S.ecu.rlities and Exchange Commission having filed a Complaint, and Defendants Robert
Yn;aga and Donna Yeager (“Defendants™) having entered a general appearance, consented to the
Court’s jurisdiction over Defendants and the Suﬁject matter of this action, consented to entry of this
Judgment of Permanent Injunction and Other Relief (“Judgment ") without admitting or denying the
allegations of the Complaint (except as to juﬁsdiction), waived findings of fact and conclusions.of
law, and wlm'ved any right to appeal from ﬂlis Judgment:

L
 VIOLATION OF SECTION 17(a)(1) OF THE SECURITIES ACT

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Defendants -and
Defendants’ agents, servants, employees, attorneys, a.lnd all persons in active concert or participation
with them who receive actual notice of this Judgment by personal service or otherwise are permanently

restrained and enjoined from violating Section 17(a)(1) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities

Act”)[15US.C. § 77q(a)(1)] in the offei or sale of any security by the use of any means or instrutnepts
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-~ of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the mails, directly orindirectly, - . -

- to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud.
1L

- VIOLATION OF SECTION 10(b) OF THE |
EXCHANGE ACT AND RULE 10b-5 THEREUNDER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendants and

- Defendants’ agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation .

with them who receive as:tual notice of this Judgment by personal service uroﬂlsrwise are p&tmnmﬂy -

restrmnsd and enjomed fmm violating, d.u-ectly or mdu'ecﬂy, Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 (the “Bxchange Act”) [15 US.C. § 78i()] and Rule 10b-5 pmmulgated thereunder [17

3

C.FR § 240.1 Db—S], by using any means or insmunentality of imerstate comtuerce, or of the_mails,.or- :

of any fadifty of any ‘nlatiunal securities cxéhange, in connection with the purchzse or sale of any

security: .

(@ 1 ern]:vlc&}r a.ny dewce, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

) to make an}' untrue statement of a matcnal fact or to omit to state a matenal fact necessary

in orde:r to make the statements made, in llght of the circumstances under which thcy. were

made, not misleading; or

(c)  toengage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or would operate as a -

fraud or deceit upon any person.
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'VIOLATION OF SECTIONS 17(a)(2)

AND 17(a)(3) OF THE SECURITIES ACT
IT 8 FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Defendants and

Defendants" agents, se:rvams, employees, aItomeys, and all persons in active concert or participation -
with them who receive actual notice of this.Judgment by personal service or otherwise are permanently
restrained and enjoined from violating Sections 1?(3)(2) and 17(a)(3) of the Secmiﬁes-lAct SsuUsc -
§8 774(2)(2) and 77q(a)(3)] in the offer or sale bfany security by the usé of any means or instruments
«of transportafion or communijcation in interstate comimerce ofby use of the mails :d.irect}y orindirectly: -

~ (2) to obtain money or: pmpa‘ty by means of any untrue statement of a material fact or.any
omission of a matenal fact necessary in order to make the statements madc in light of the

circumstances under wlnch the:y were madc, not m:sleadmg; or

(b) toengage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which operates or would operateas - -

- a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser,
- V.
VIOLATION OF SECTION 5 OF THE SECURITIES ACT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Defendarits and

- Defendants' agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation
with them who receive actual ﬁotice of this Judgment by personal service or otherwise are.
permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 5 of the Securities Act [15 U.8.C. § 77¢]
by, directly or indirectly, in the absence of any apphcablf: exemption:

(a) Unlcss a regxstranon smement is in effect as to & security, makmg use of any means
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or instruments of transportation or communication in interstate-commerce or of the - .

h

v

maails to sell such security through the use or medium of any prospectus or otherwise; -

Unless a registration statement is in effect as to a security, carrying or causing 10 be

carried through the mails or in interstate commerce, by any means or instruments of -

transportation, any such security for the purpose of sale or for delivery after sale; or

Making use of any means or iusu'lunents of 't:ansponaﬁnn or communication in

medmm of any prospectus or othemse any secunty, unless a reglstrauon statement
* has bccn ﬁled w1th t.he Commlssmn as to such secunty, or  while the reglstram:n

statemnent is the subj ectofa refusa] order or stop order ¢ or (prmr to the effective date . . .

interstate commerce or of thc maﬂs to offer to sell or offer to buy tbrough the use or . -

of the rcg:stranon statem:nt) any public proceeding or examination under Section 8

of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77h].

Ve

YIOLATION OF SECT [DN 15(a) (1) OE THE EXCHANGE ACT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Defendants and

: Defendants’ agents, servants employees attomeys and all persons in actwe concert or participation

w1th thm who reccive actual notice of this Judgment by personal service or otherwise are

permanently restrained and enjoined from violating Section 15(a)(1) of the Exchange Act [15 US.C.

§ 780(a)(1)] by directly or indirectly, by maling use of the mails or any meéns or instrumentality of

interstate commerce to effect any transactions in, or to induce or attempt to induce the purchase or sale

of securities, while acting as a broker or dealer engaged in the business of effecting transactions in

securities for the accn;.mt; of others, but not régistered as a broker-dealer in accordance with Section
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- 15(b) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C:-§.780(b)]. .. . -
VL
. ASSET FREEZE
A.-. ITISFURTHER ORDERED that, pendlng further Order of this Court, Defendants .
: aud Defendants’ agents, servants, employees, attorneys, deposltones banks and those’ persons in
active concert or MCxpanon with any one ormore of them, and each of them who receivenotice of -
thls order by personal service, mml facsumle transmission or uthetmsc, except any Rccewer
| ‘appomted by this Court by Order datedwﬁ fe and hereby are restramed ﬁ'om dlrcctly or
| mdn-ectly, transferring, senmg off,’ recewmg changmg, sellmg, pledgmg, assigning, liquidating or
.. - otherwise d1sposmg of, or withdrawing any assets or property owned by, cun!m]led by, or in the .
| possession of Defendants, includ'mg, but not limited to, cash, free credit balances, fully paid for
‘securities, and/or property pledged or hypothecated as collateral for loans, other than as ordered by
Cou.rt.. | |
. B. Notwithstanding Section VI. (A) above, the Défendams shall be entitled to the release . . |
| of frozen finds 1o pay each of thei;' reasonable living expenses. The amount of funds to which each -
Iefendtant sball be encitied s the dusation fot which esch shaif be-eutied 1o thoss Snds il be
the subject of good-faith neg;tiations between the parties to commence immediately. upon the
p’r;visi.on of the sworn accoﬁntix;gs the Defendants are required to provide in Sections VIIL (&) and
- (b); below. If the parties cannot agree on specific amounts and/or duratia;.ns within eleven (11) days
' of service of the swom accountings described below in Sections VIIL. (a) and (b) , they shall submit
the méﬁr to the Court for determination. If the matter is submitted to the Court, the extitlement of

Defendants to reasonable living expenses shall be assuincd; only the amounts and durations shall be
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v ... -at Issue.,
C. - Alsonotwithstanding Section VI. (A) above, the Commission and the Receiver agree
.~ lo enter into good-faith negotiations with the Defendants over the release of frozen funds to pay -
reasonable attoreys” fees. The negotiations shall commence immediately upon (1) the provision of
the swérn accountings the Defendants are required to prtlwide in Sections VIII. (a) and (b) below and
| (2) their provision to the Receiver-and .the. Commission of aﬁmunts already paid to and spent by their

. counsel of record in this case. If the parties cannot agree on the release of frozen funds to pay

attorneys’ fees (including specific amounts) within eleven (11) days of service of Sections VI {2) .~ = -

“and (b) below, they shall submit the matter to the Court for determination. If the matter is submitted -

to the Court, the entitlement of Defendants reasonable attorneys® fees shall be at issue along with .. . -

amounts.
VIL
REPA 0

. IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants and Defgndants’ attomeys, depositories;
banks, and thqse persons in active ;:o'ncm or paniéipation with any one or more of them, and each of
them, shall: | . |
{(a)  take such steps as are necessary to repatdaté to the territory of the United States all
funds and assets of investors deshrib'e& in ﬁcf&mmission’s Complaint in this action which ar;:hcld by

them or are under their direct or indirect control, jointly or singly, and deposit such funds into the i
- negxstry of the United States District Court, Southern District of Florida; and

(b) . provide the Commission and the Court a written description of the funds and assets so

repatriated.



Apr.21. 2006 9:38AM No.9087 P. 8§

- ACCOUNTING'
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants shall provide to. the Receiver, the
‘Comumission, and the Cﬁu_rt, a sworn accounting, in compliance with this provision of the Judgrment . -
~ as follows:
L {a)  within ten (10) days of the datc of this Judgment, Defendants shall provide an . .~
-accounting of all assets, funds or other praperties held by one or any of them, jointly or individually, ~
-or for each or any of their direct or benieficial interest, or over which one or any of them maintains.
. control, wherever si-mateﬁ, stating the location, value and disposition of each .-su;:h'm;set, fund, and. . .
‘other ;;roperty; and, |
(b)  within teﬁ (10) days of the date of this Judgment, Defendants shall provide an
) accounting each account witﬁ any financial or hrﬁkelage inslituﬁon maintained in any of their names, -
“or for one or-any .of their direct or indirect beneficial interests, or over which one ar any of them -
* maintain control, wherever sitnated, and the names and last known addresses of all bailees;, debtors, -
and other pérsons and entit;ies which have held or are holding their assets, funds or other properties;
and, -
" (¢) within ninety (90) days of the date of this. Judgment, Defendants shall providc-an
o accounlmg of all funds, whether in the form of compensation, commissions, income (including
.- payments for assets, shares or property of any kind), and property or other benefits (inchiding the
: p:ovision_ of or payment for services of a personal or mixed business and personal nature) received

from any source since January 1998.
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IX.
. RECORDS PRESERVATION
- IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that, pending resolution of this casg'un the
merits, Defendants, its officers, directors, agents, servants, employees, attorneys, depositories, baﬁks, o
- and those persons in active concert or participation with any one or more of them, and each of them, - -
be and hereby are restrained and. enjoined from, directly or indirectly, destroying, mutilating,

' concealing, altering, disposing of, or otherwise rendering illegible in any manner, any of the books, -

- records, documents, comespondence, brochures, manuals, papers, ledgers, accounts; statements, © = .

pbligaﬁons, files and other property of or pertaining to the Defcndants or any of them wherever

located, until further Order of this Court.

X.
DISGORGEMENT AND CIVIL PENALTY
~ ITISFURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that Defendants shall pay
 disgorgement of ill-gotten gains, prejudgment interest thereon, and a civil penalty pursuant tn-'Sr;ction
20(d) of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)] and Section 21 (3)(3) of the Exchange Act[15U.S.C. - -

§ 78u(d)(3)). If the parties cannot agree on the appropriate amounts of disgorgement, prejudgment

interest and/or civil penalty, the Court shall determine those amounts, or any of them, upon motion .~~~

of the Commission. Prejudgment interest shall be calculated from April 17, 2006, based on the rate -
of interest used by the Internal Revenue Service for the underpayment of federal income tax as set -

forth in 26 U.8.C. § 6621(a)(2). In connection with the Commission’s motion for disgorgement
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and/or civil penalties, and at any hearing held on such a motion: (a) Defendants will be precluded - -

from arguing that they did not violate the federal securitics laws as alleged in the Complaint; (b)

-‘Defendants may not challenge the validity of the Consent or this Judgment; (c) solely for the - -

. purposes of such motion, the allegations of the Complaint shall be accepted as.and deemed true by

the Court; and (d) the Court may determine the issues raised in the motion on the basis of affidavits,

declarations, excerpts of sworn deposition or investigative testimony, and documentary evidence,

"+ without regard to the standards for summary judg‘menf contained in Rule 56(c) of the Federal Rules

. of Civil Procedure. In'connection with the Commission’s meticn for disgorgement and/or civil

*.in this Judgment shall preval-lt-Defendants-ﬁnm‘presenting- evidence of factors mitigating against the
"-imposition of a civil penalty, or its amount.

XL

INCORPORATION OF CONSENT

- penalties, the parties may take discovery, including discovery from appropriate non-parties. Nothing -

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the Consent is

"+ incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth herein; and-that Defendants

shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements set forth therein. -
XH.
. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

- ITIS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that this Court shall retain .

*jurisdiction over this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms of this Judgment.



Apr.21. 2006 9:38AM No.9057 P. 11

Xia.
- RULE 54(b) CERTIFICATION
There being no just reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure, the Clerk is ordered to enter this Judgment forthwith and without further notice.

Dated this o7 _dayof (ig. l ,2006.

" _
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
PAUL C. HUCK

-, Copies to: All parties and counsel of record. .
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